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QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 AND 2005
(in thousands, except per share data)

(unaudited)
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Net revenues $ 1,583,202 $ 1,361,116 $4,719,389 $ 4,029,429
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of services 933,735 799,074 2,776,592 2,364,127
Selling, general and administrative 354,631 303,571 1,061,007 907,228
Amortization of intangible assets 3,045 888 7,640 2,706
Other operating (income) expense, net (1,070) 7,228 25,245 8,281
Total operating costs and expenses 1,290,341 1,110,761 3,870,484 3,282,342
Operating income 292,861 250,355 848,905 747,087
Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net (22,801) (11,811) (68,927) (37,176)
Minority share of income (6,053) (4,833) (17,311) (14,918)
Equity earnings in unconsolidated joint ventures 6,621 5,852 21,265 19,506
Other income (expense), net (3,362) (6,336) 1,392 (6,125)
Total non-operating expenses, net (25,595) (17,128) (63,581) (38,713)
Income from continuing operations before taxes 267,266 233,227 785,324 708,374
Income tax expense 103,413 93,393 310,907 284,292
Income from continuing operations 163,853 139,834 474,417 424,082
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes (3,331) (4,586) (37,282) (8,134)
Net income $ 160,522 $ 135248 $§ 437,135 $ 415948
Earnings per common share - basic:
Income from continuing operations $ 083 $ 069 $ 240 % 2.10
Loss from discontinued operations (0.02) (0.02) (0.19) (0.04)
Net income $ 081 $ 067 $ 221 $ 2.06
Earnings per common share - diluted:
Income from continuing operations $ 082 $ 068 $ 237 % 2.06
Loss from discontinued operations (0.02) (0.02) (0.19) (0.04)

Net income $ 080 $ 066 $ 218 % 2.02
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Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Basic 197,164 202,681 197,857
Diluted 200,129 206,126 200,583
Dividends per common share $ 010 $ 009 § 0.30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

202,332
206,214

0.27
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QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 AND DECEMBER 31, 2005
(in thousands, except per share data)

(unaudited)
September 30, December 31,
2006 2005
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 105,115  $ 92,130
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $204,213 and $193,754 at September 30,
2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively 857,030 732,907
Inventories 77,315 77,939
Deferred income taxes 122,260 107,442
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 80,227 59,079
Total current assets 1,241,947 1,069,497
Property, plant and equipment, net 741,677 753,663
Goodwill, net 3,389,584 3,197,227
Intangible assets, net 194,754 147,383
Other assets 136,848 138,345
Total assets $ 5,704,810 $ 5,306,115
Liabilities and Stockholders Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 860,706  $ 764,453
Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term debt 316,913 336,839
Total current liabilities 1,177,619 1,101,292
Long-term debt 1,239,002 1,255,386
Other liabilities 219,638 186,453
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders equity:
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share; 600,000 and 300,000 shares authorized at September 30,
2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively; 213,738 and 213,674 issued at September 30, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, respectively 2,137 2,137
Additional paid-in capital 2,188,299 2,175,533
Retained earnings 1,670,364 1,292,510
Unearned compensation (3,321)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 2,418 (6,205)
Treasury stock, at cost; 16,370 and 15,219 shares at September 30, 2006
and December 31, 2005, respectively (794,667) (697,670)
Total stockholders equity 3,068,551 2,762,984
Total liabilities and stockholders equity $ 5704810 $ 5,306,115

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 AND 2005

(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Provision for doubtful accounts

Stock-based compensation expense

Provision for restructuring and other special charges
Deferred income tax benefit

Minority share of income

Tax benefits associated with stock-based compensation plans
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation arrangements
Other, net

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Integration, settlement and other special charges

Income taxes payable

Other assets and liabilities, net

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired

Capital expenditures

Decrease (increase) in investments and other assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Repayments of debt

Proceeds from borrowings

Decrease in book overdrafts

Purchases of treasury stock

Exercise of stock options

Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation arrangements
Dividends paid

Distributions to minority partners

Financing costs paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

(unaudited)

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2006 2005
$ 437,135 415,948
148,008 128,986
184,627 177,954
52,956 1,407
55,788
(40,828) (10,930)
17,311 14,918
28,396
(30,705)
5,425 8,472

(297,032) (222.465)
75,226 (6,109)
(1,737) (1,604)
52,154 30,276

(12,522) (17,075)
645,806 548,174

(231,384) (20,587)

(133,521) (178,332)
13,644 (40,064)

(351,261) (238,983)

(416,158) (100,507)

375,000 99,999
(13,508)

(275,926) (190,467)
91,679 84,845
30,705

(57,395) (51,492)
(15,229) (14,782)
(728)

(281,560) (172,404)
12,985 136,787
92,130 73,302
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Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 105,115  $ 210,089

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

(unaudited)

1.  BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Background

Quest Diagnostics Incorporated and its subsidiaries ( Quest Diagnostics or the Company ) is the largest clinical laboratory testing business
in the United States. As the nation s leading provider of diagnostic testing and services for the healthcare industry, Quest Diagnostics offers a
broad range of clinical laboratory testing services to patients, physicians, hospitals, healthcare insurers, employers, governmental institutions and
other commercial clinical laboratories. Quest Diagnostics is the leading provider of esoteric testing, including gene-based testing. The Company
is also the leading provider of testing for drugs-of-abuse. Through the Company s national network of laboratories and patient service centers,
and its esoteric testing laboratories and development facilities, Quest Diagnostics offers comprehensive and innovative diagnostic testing,
information and services used by physicians and other healthcare professionals to make decisions to improve health. The Company is also a
leading provider of anatomic pathology services, testing to support clinical trials of new pharmaceuticals worldwide and risk assessment services
for the life insurance industry.

On an annual basis, Quest Diagnostics processes greater than 150 million requisitions for testing through its extensive network of
laboratories and patient service centers in virtually every major metropolitan area throughout the United States.

Basis of Presentation

The interim consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments, which in the opinion of management are necessary for a fair
statement of financial condition and results of operations for the periods presented. Except as otherwise disclosed, all such adjustments are of a
normal recurring nature. The interim consolidated financial statements have been compiled without audit. Operating results for the interim
periods are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year. These interim consolidated financial statements should
be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements included in the Company s 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

During the third quarter of 2006, the Company completed its wind down of NID, a test kit manufacturing subsidiary, and classified the
operations of NID as discontinued operations. The accompanying consolidated statements of operations and related disclosures have been
restated to report the results of NID as discontinued operations for all periods presented. See Note 9 for a further discussion of discontinued
operations.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average common shares outstanding. Diluted
earnings per common share is calculated by dividing net income, adjusted for the after-tax impact of the interest expense associated with the
Company s 134% contingent convertible debentures due 2021 (the Debentures ), by the weighted average common shares outstanding after giving
effect to all potentially dilutive common shares outstanding during the period. Potentially dilutive common shares include the dilutive effect of
outstanding stock options, performance share units and restricted common shares granted under the Company s Amended and Restated Employee
Long-Term Incentive Plan and its Amended and Restated Director Long-Term Incentive Plan and the Debentures. The Debentures were called
for redemption by the Company in December 2004, and redeemed as of January 18, 2005.
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QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
(in thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

(unaudited)

The computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share (using the if-converted method) was as follows (in thousands, except per
share data):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

2006 2005 2006 2005
Income from continuing operations  basic $ 163,853 $ 139,834 $ 474417 $ 424,082
Loss from discontinued operations  basic (3,331) (4,586) (37,282) (8,134)
Net income available to common stockholders basic 160,522 135,248 437,135 415,948
Add: Interest expense associated with the Debentures, net of related tax
effects 82
Net income available to common stockholders diluted $ 160,522 $ 135,248 $ 437,135 $ 416,030
Weighted average common shares outstanding basic 197,164 202,681 197,857 202,332
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options, restricted common shares and performance
share units 2,965 3,445 2,726 3,678
Debentures 204
Weighted average common shares outstanding  diluted 200,129 206,126 200,583 206,214
Earnings per common share basic:
Income from continuing operations $ 083 $ 069 $ 240 $ 2.10
Loss from discontinued operations (0.02) (0.02) (0.19) (0.04)
Net income $ 081 $ 067 $ 221 $ 2.06
Earnings per common share diluted:
Income from continuing operations $ 082 $ 068 $ 237 $ 2.06
Loss from discontinued operations (0.02) (0.02) (0.19) (0.04)
Net income $ 080 $ 066 $ 2.18 $ 2.02

Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB ) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ( SFAS ) No.

123, revised 2004, Share-Based Payment ( SFAS 123R ). SFAS 123R requires that companies recognize compensation cost relating to
share-based payment transactions based on the fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued. SFAS 123R is effective for annual periods
beginning after January 1, 2006. The Company adopted SFAS 123R effective January 1, 2006 using the modified prospective approach and
therefore has not restated results for prior periods. Under this approach, awards that are granted, modified or settled after January 1, 2006 will be
measured and accounted for in accordance with SFAS 123R. Unvested awards that were granted prior to January 1, 2006 will continue to be
accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation ( SFAS 123 ), as amended by SFAS No. 148,

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation  Transition and Disclosure an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123 ( SFAS 148 ), except that
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compensation cost will be recognized in the Company s results of operations.

Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS 123R, the Company records stock-based compensation as a charge to earnings net of the estimated
impact of forfeited awards. As such, the Company recognizes stock-based compensation cost only for those stock-based awards that are
estimated to ultimately vest over their requisite service period, based on the vesting provisions of the individual grants. The cumulative effect on
current and prior periods of a change in the estimated forfeiture rate is recognized as compensation cost in earnings in the period of the revision.
Stock-based compensation expense associated with performance share units is recognized based on management s best estimates of the
achievement of the performance goals specified in such awards and the resulting number of shares that will be earned. The cumulative effect on
current and prior periods of a change in the estimated number of performance share units

6
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QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
(in thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

(unaudited)

expected to be earned is recognized as compensation cost in earnings in the period of the revision. The Company recognizes stock-based
compensation expense related to the Company s Amended Employee Stock Purchase Plan ( ESPP ) based on the 15% discount at purchase. See
Note 2 for a further discussion of stock-based compensation.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company accounted for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed in
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees ( APB 25 ), and related interpretations and chose to
adopt the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS 123, as amended by SFAS 148. Under this approach, the cost of restricted stock awards was
expensed over their vesting period, while the imputed cost of stock option grants and discounts offered under the Company s ESPP was
disclosed, based on the vesting provisions of the individual grants, but not charged to expense. Stock-based compensation expense recorded in
accordance with APB 25, relating to restricted stock awards, was $0.6 million and $1.4 million for the three and nine months ended September
30, 2005.

New Accounting Standards

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48  Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes ( FIN 48 ). FIN 48 clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a company s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109 Accounting for
Income Taxes . FIN 48 provides guidance on recognizing, measuring, presenting and disclosing in the financial statements uncertain tax
positions that a company has taken or expects to take on a tax return. FIN 48 is effective for the Company as of January 1, 2007. The Company
is currently assessing the impact, if any, of FIN 48 on its consolidated financial statements. The Company is formulating an implementation plan
that identifies and categorizes its uncertain tax positions and each position will be evaluated and assessed for recognition and measurement under
the guidelines of FIN 48.

In August 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission ( SEC ) issued new requirements for Executive Compensation and Related
Person Disclosure . This ruling amends the disclosure requirements of total compensation for the principal executive officer, the principal
financial officer, and three other most highly paid officers. In addition, this ruling expands the compensation disclosures for directors and
requires that all compensation to each director be disclosed in a separate summary compensation table with improved narrative disclosure
supplementing the tabular presentation. The Company anticipates adopting this ruling in the Company s 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K. The
adoption of this ruling will have no impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 Fair Value Measurements ( SFAS 157 ). SFAS 157 provides a new single authoritative
definition of fair value and provides enhanced guidance for measuring the fair value of assets and liabilities and requires additional disclosures
related to the extent to which companies measure assets and liabilities at fair value, the information used to measure fair value, and the effect of
fair value measurements on earnings. SFAS 157 is effective for the Company as of January 1, 2008. The Company is currently assessing the
impact, if any, of SFAS 157 on its consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans
an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) ( SFAS 158 ). SFAS 158 requires balance sheet recognition of the overfunded or
underfunded status of pension and postretirement benefit plans. Under SFAS 158, actuarial gains and losses, prior service costs or credits, and
any remaining transition assets or obligations that have not been recognized under previous accounting standards must be recognized as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within stockholders equity, net of tax effects, until they are amortized as a
component of net periodic benefit cost. In addition, the measurement date and the date at which plan assets and the benefit obligation are
measured, are required to be the company s fiscal year end. SFAS 158 is effective for the Company as of December 31, 2007, except for the
measurement date provisions, which are effective December 31, 2009. The adoption of SFAS 158 is not expected to have a material impact on
the Company s consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the SEC released Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements When
Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements ( SAB 108 ). SAB 108 provides interpretative guidance on how public
companies quantify financial statement misstatements. There have been two common approaches used to quantify such errors. Under an income
statement approach, the roll-over method, the error is quantified as the amount by which the current year income statement is misstated.
Alternatively, under a balance sheet approach, the iron curtain method, the error is quantified as the cumulative amount by which the current
year balance sheet is misstated.

11
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QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
(in thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

(unaudited)

In SAB 108, the SEC established an approach that requires quantification of financial statement misstatements based on the effects of the
misstatements on each of the company s financial statements and the related financial statement disclosures. This model is commonly referred to
asa dual approach because it requires quantification of errors under both the roll-over and iron curtain methods. SAB 108 is effective for the
Company as of January 1, 2007. The adoption of SAB 108 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial
statements.

2.  STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006, the stock-based compensation expense recorded in accordance with SFAS 123R
totaled $13.5 million ($8 million, net of tax, or $0.04 per basic and diluted share) and $53 million ($32 million, net of tax, or $0.16 per basic and
diluted share), respectively. In addition, in connection with the adoption of SFAS 123R, net cash provided by operating activities decreased and
net cash provided by financing activities increased in the first nine months of 2006 by $31 million related to excess tax benefits from
stock-based compensation arrangements.

Employee and Non-employee Directors Stock Ownership Programs

In 2005, the Company established the Amended and Restated Employee Long-Term Incentive Plan (the ELTIP ). The ELTIP provides for
three types of awards: (a) stock options, (b) stock appreciation rights and (c) incentive stock awards. The ELTIP provides for the grant to eligible
employees of either non-qualified or incentive stock options, or both, to purchase shares of Quest Diagnostics common stock at no less than the
fair market value on the date of grant. The stock options are subject to forfeiture if employment terminates prior to the end of the prescribed
vesting period, as determined by the Board of Directors. The stock options expire on the date designated by the Board of Directors but in no
event more than seven years from date of grant. Grants of stock appreciation rights allow eligible employees to receive a payment based on the
appreciation of Quest Diagnostics common stock in cash, shares of Quest Diagnostics common stock or a combination thereof. The stock
appreciation rights are granted at an exercise price at no less than the fair market value of Quest Diagnostics common stock on the date of grant.
Stock appreciation rights expire on the date designated by the Board of Directors but in no event more than seven years from date of grant. No
stock appreciation rights have been granted under the ELTIP. Under the incentive stock provisions of the plan, the ELTIP allows eligible
employees to receive awards of shares, or the right to receive shares, of Quest Diagnostics common stock, the equivalent value in cash or a
combination thereof. These shares are generally earned on achievement of financial performance goals and are subject to forfeiture if
employment terminates prior to the end of the prescribed vesting period, as determined by the Board of Directors. The actual amount of
performance share awards is based on the Company s earnings per share growth for the performance period compared to that of a peer group of
companies. Key executive, managerial and technical employees are eligible to participate in the ELTIP. The maximum number of shares of
Quest Diagnostics common stock that may be optioned or granted under the ELTIP is 48 million shares. In addition, any remaining shares under
the Company s 1996 Employee Equity Participation Plan are available for issuance under the ELTIP.

In 2005, the Company established the Amended and Restated Director Long-Term Incentive Plan (the DLTIP ). The DLTIP provides for
the grant to non-employee directors of non-qualified stock options to purchase shares of Quest Diagnostics common stock at no less than the fair
market value on the date of grant and incentive stock awards. The incentive stock awards are generally earned on achievement of certain
performance goals. The maximum number of shares that may be issued under the DLTIP is 2 million shares. The stock options expire seven
years from date of grant and generally become exercisable in three equal annual installments beginning on the first anniversary date of the grant
of the option regardless of whether the optionee remains a director of the Company.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company s ESPP, which replaced the Company s prior plan, was approved by the Company s shareholders at the 2006 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders. Under the Company s ESPP, substantially all employees can elect to have up to 10% of their annual wages withheld to purchase
Quest Diagnostics common stock at 85% of the market price of the Company s common stock on the last business day of each calendar month.
Under the ESPP, the maximum number of shares of Quest Diagnostics common stock which may be purchased by eligible employees, is 5
million.

12
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QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
(in thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

(unaudited)

In general, the Company s practice has been to issue shares related to its stock-based compensation program from shares of its common
stock held in treasury. See Note 7 for further information regarding the Company s share repurchase program.

The fair value of stock option awards is estimated on the date of grant using a lattice-based option-valuation model that uses the
assumptions in the following table. The expected volatility under the lattice-based option-valuation model was based on the current and the
historical implied volatilities from traded options of the Company s stock. The dividend yield was based on the approved annual dividend rate in
effect and current market price of the underlying common stock at the time of grant. The risk-free interest rate was based on the U.S. Treasury
yield curve in effect at the time of grant for bonds with maturities ranging from one month to seven years. The expected life of the options
granted was estimated using the historical exercise behavior of employees.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

2006 2005 2006 2005
Weighted average fair value of options at grant date $18.11 $13.80 $13.91 $14.17
Expected volatility 21.8% 22.4% 18.2% 23.2%
Dividend yield 0.7% 0.7% 0.7% 0.7%
Risk-free interest rate 4.8% 3.8% -4.2% 4.6% 3.8% -4.2%
Expected holding period, in years 55 6.2 49 6.2 56 6.2 49 6.2

The fair value of restricted stock awards and performance share units is the average market price of the Company s common stock at the
date of grant.

Transactions under stock option plans as of September 30, 2006 and changes during the nine months ended September 30, 2006 were as
follows:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Term Value
(in thousands) Price (in years) (in millions)
Options outstanding at December 31, 2005 15,048 $ 34.33
Options granted 2,489 52.58
Options exercised (3,462) 27.26
Options terminated (266) 47.73
Options outstanding at September 30, 2006 13,809 $ 39.12 60 §$ 304
Vested and expected to vest at September 30, 2006 13,494 $ 38.85 60 $ 301
Exercisable at September 30, 2006 8,590 $ 33.20 59 §$ 240

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (the difference between the Company s closing
common stock price on the last trading day of the third quarter of 2006 and the exercise price, multiplied by the number of in-the-money
options) that would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options on September 30, 2006. This amount
changes, based on the fair market value of the Company s common stock. Total intrinsic value of options exercised for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2006 was $16 million and $98 million, respectively. Total intrinsic value of options exercised for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2005 was $22 million and $85 million, respectively.

13
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QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
(in thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

(unaudited)

As of September 30, 2006, there was $27 million of unrecognized stock-based compensation cost related to stock options which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.9 years.

Incentive stock awards, including restricted stock awards and performance share units, as of September 30, 2006 and changes during the
nine months ended September 30, 2006 were as follows:

Weighted
Average Grant

Shares Date Fair

(in thousands) Value

Nonvested incentive shares at December 31, 2005 107 $ 49.71
Incentive shares granted 992 52.38
Incentive shares vested (32) 49.99
Incentive shares forfeited and canceled 42) 51.82
Nonvested incentive shares at September 30, 2006 1,025 $ 51.82

As of September 30, 2006, there was $31 million of unrecognized stock-based compensation cost related to nonvested incentive stock
awards, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2 years. Total fair value of shares vested was less than $0.1
million and $1.7 million, respectively for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006, respectively. Total fair value of shares vested for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005 was not material.

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006, stock-based compensation expense totaled $13.5 million and $53 million,
respectively. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005, stock-based compensation expense totaled $0.6 million and $1.4 million,
respectively. Income tax benefits related to stock-based compensation expense totaled $5.3 million and $21 million for the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2006, respectively. Income tax benefits related to stock-based compensation expense totaled $0.2 million and $0.6
million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005, respectively.

The following pro forma information is presented for comparative purposes and illustrates the pro forma effect on net income and earnings
per share for the periods presented, as if the Company had elected to recognize compensation cost associated with stock option awards and
employee stock purchases under the Company s ESPP, consistent with the method prescribed by SFAS 123, as amended by SFAS 148 (in
thousands, except per share data):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 30, 2005 September 30, 2005
Net income:
Net income, as reported $ 135,248  $ 415,948
Add: Stock-based compensation under APB 25 617 1,407
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined
under fair value method for all awards, net of related tax effects (8,282) (27,471)
Pro forma net income $ 127,583 $ 389,884
Earnings per common share:
Basic  as reported $ 0.67 $ 2.06
Basic pro forma $ 063 $ 1.93

15



Diluted as reported

Diluted pro forma
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$ 0.66 $

2.02

$ 062 $

1.88

10

16



Edgar Filing: QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INC - Form 10-Q

QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
(in thousands, unless otherwise indicated)
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3.  BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS
2006 Acquisition

On July 3, 2006, the Company completed its acquisition of Focus Technologies Holding Company ( Focus ) in an all-cash transaction
valued at $208 million, including approximately $3 million of assumed debt. Focus is a leading provider of infectious and immunologic diseases
testing and develops and markets diagnostic products. Focus offers its reference testing services to large academic medical centers, hospitals and
commercial laboratories. The Company financed the aggregate purchase price of $205 million, which includes $0.5 million of related transaction
costs, and the repayment of substantially all of Focus outstanding debt with $135 million of borrowings under its secured receivables credit
facility and with cash on hand.

The acquisition of Focus was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. As such, the cost to acquire Focus was allocated to
the respective assets and liabilities acquired based on their estimated fair values as of the closing date. A preliminary allocation of the cost to
acquire Focus has been made to certain assets and liabilities of Focus based on preliminary estimates. The Company is continuing to assess the
estimated fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired. The Company s management expects to complete the purchase price allocation during
the fourth quarter of 2006. The consolidated financial statements include the results of operations of Focus subsequent to the closing of the
acquisition.

Of the aggregate purchase price of $205 million, $141 million was allocated to goodwill, $33 million was allocated to customer
relationships that are being amortized over 10-15 years and $9.1 million was allocated to trade names that are not subject to amortization.
Substantially all of the goodwill is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Supplemental pro forma combined financial information has not been presented as the acquisition of Focus is not material to the
Company s consolidated financial statements.

2005 Acquisition
Acquisition of LabOne, Inc.

On November 1, 2005, the Company completed its acquisition of LabOne, Inc. ( LabOne ) in a transaction valued at approximately $947
million, including approximately $138 million of assumed debt of LabOne. LabOne provides health screening and risk assessment services to
life insurance companies, as well as clinical diagnostic testing services to healthcare providers and drugs-of-abuse testing to employers.

Through the acquisition of LabOne, the Company acquired all of LabOne s operations, including its health screening and risk assessment
services for life insurance companies, its clinical diagnostic testing services, and its drugs-of-abuse testing for employers. LabOne had 3,100
employees and principal laboratories in Lenexa, Kansas, as well as in Cincinnati, Ohio.

The acquisition of LabOne was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. As such, the cost to acquire LabOne was
allocated to the respective assets and liabilities acquired based on their estimated fair values as of the closing date. During the third quarter of
2006, the Company adjusted its purchase price allocation for the LabOne acquisition based on updated fair value estimates for certain assets and
liabilities acquired, primarily associated with property, plant and equipment, net of related deferred income taxes, and recorded additional
goodwill of approximately $8 million. The consolidated financial statements include the results of operations of LabOne subsequent to the
closing of the acquisition.
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Pro Forma Combined Financial Information

The following unaudited pro forma combined financial information for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005 assumes that
the LabOne acquisition was completed on January 1, 2005 (in thousands, except per share data):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2005 September 30, 2005

Net revenues $ 1,491,948 $ 4,420,364
Net income 134,826 416,915
Basic earnings per common share:
Net income $ 0.67 $ 2.06
Weighted average common shares outstanding  basic 202,681 202,332
Diluted earnings per common share:
Net income $ 0.66 $ 2.02
Weighted average common shares outstanding  diluted 206,126 206,214

The unaudited pro forma combined financial information presented above reflects certain reclassifications to the historical financial
statements of LabOne to conform LabOne s accounting policies and classification of certain costs and expenses to that of Quest Diagnostics.
These adjustments had no impact on pro forma net income. Pro forma results for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005 exclude
$1.3 million and $1.9 million, respectively, of transaction related costs, which were incurred and expensed by LabOne in conjunction with its
acquisition by Quest Diagnostics.

4. INTEGRATION ACTIVITIES
During the first quarter of 2006, the Company finalized its plan related to the integration of LabOne. The plan focuses on rationalizing the
Company s testing capacity, infrastructure and support services in markets which are served by both LabOne and Quest Diagnostics.

In conjunction with finalizing the LabOne integration, the Company recorded $23 million of costs during the first quarter of 2006. The
majority of these costs relate to employee severance. Employee groups affected as a result of this plan included those involved in the testing of
specimens, as well as administrative and other support functions. Of the total costs indicated above, $21 million related to actions that impact
Quest Diagnostics employees and its operations and were comprised principally of employee severance benefits for approximately 600
employees. These costs were accounted for as a charge to earnings and included in other operating (income) expense, net within the consolidated
statements of operations.

In addition, $2.6 million of integration costs, related to actions that impact the employees and operations of LabOne, were accounted for
as a cost of the LabOne acquisition and included in goodwill during the first quarter of 2006. Of the $2.6 million, $1.2 million related to asset
write-offs with the remainder primarily associated with employee severance benefits for approximately 95 employees.

As of September 30, 2006, accruals related to the LabOne integration plan totaled $22 million. While the majority of the accrued integration
costs are expected to be paid in the remainder of 2006 and 2007, there are certain severance costs that have payment terms extending into 2008.

In addition, during the first quarter of 2006, the Company recorded a $4.1 million charge related to consolidating its operations in
California into a new facility. The costs, comprised primarily of employee severance costs and the write-off of certain operating assets, were

accounted for as a charge to earnings and included in other operating (income) expense, net within the consolidated statements of operations.
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5. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill at September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 consisted of the following:

September 30, December 31,

2006 2005
Goodwill $ 3,570,776 $ 3,385,280
Less: accumulated amortization (181,192) (188,053)
Goodwill, net $ 3,389,584 $ 3,197,227

The changes in the gross carrying amount of goodwill for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2006 and for the year ended
December 31, 2005 are as follows:

September 30, December 31,

2006 2005
Balance at beginning of period $ 3385280 $ 2,695,003
Goodwill acquired during the period 192,357 697,766
Other (6,861) (7,489)
Balance at end of period $ 3,570,776 $ 3,385,280

For the year ended December 31, 2005, the increase in goodwill was primarily related to the acquisition of LabOne. During the fourth
quarter of 2005, the Company recorded a $7.5 million charge, which was included in other operating (income) expense, net in the consolidated
statement of operations, to write off all of the goodwill associated with NID.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2006, the increase in goodwill was primarily related to the acquisition of Focus, the acquisition
of a privately held test kit manufacturer and adjustments associated with the LabOne purchase price allocation and LabOne integration plan.
These additions were $141 million, $40 million and $10 million, respectively. In connection with the Company s decision to discontinue the
operations of NID in the second quarter of 2006, the Company eliminated the goodwill and related accumulated amortization associated with
NID, which had no impact on goodwill, net.

Intangible assets at September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 consisted of the following:

September 30, 2006 December 31, 2005
Weighted Cost Accumulated Net Cost Accumulated Net
Average Amortization Amortization

Amortization
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Amortizing intangible assets:
Customer-related intangibles
Non-compete agreements
Other

Total
Intangible assets not subject

to amortization:
Tradenames

Total intangible assets
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Period
19 years $ 205,522 $ (45,510) $ 160,012 $ 172,522 (39,297) $ 133,225
5 years 46,732 (45,022) 1,710 45,707 (44,221) 1,486
10 years 16,727 (4,395) 12,332 7,044 (3,772) 3,272
18 years 268,981 (94,927) 174,054 225,273 (87,290) 137,983
20,700 20,700 9,400 9,400
$ 289,681 $ (94,927) $ 194,754 $ 234,673 (87,290) $ 147,383
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Amortization expense related to intangible assets was $3.0 million and $0.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006 and
2005, respectively. For the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, amortization expense related to intangible assets was $7.6 million
and $2.7 million respectively.

The estimated amortization expense related to intangible assets for each of the five succeeding fiscal years and thereafter as of September
30, 2006 is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending
December 31,
Remainder of 2006 $ 3,186
2007 11,720
2008 11,460
2009 11,045
2010 10,797
2011 10,698
Thereafter 115,148
Total $ 174,054

6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In support of its risk management program, the Company has standby letters of credit issued under its letter of credit lines to ensure its
performance or payment to third parties, which amounted to $69 million at September 30, 2006. The letters of credit, which are renewed
annually, primarily represent collateral for current and future automobile liability and workers compensation loss payments.

The Company is subject to contingent obligations under certain leases and other instruments incurred in connection with real estate
activities and other operations associated with LabOne and certain of its predecessor companies. The contingent obligations arise out of certain
land leases with two Hawaiian trusts relating to land in Waikiki upon which a hotel is built and a land lease for a parking garage in Reno,
Nevada. While its title and interest to the subject leases have been transferred to third parties, the land owners have not released the original
obligors, including predecessors of LabOne, from their obligations under the leases. In February 2006, Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings
involving the subtenant of the hotel in Waikiki were commenced in Honolulu. The subtenant has indicated publicly that the filing will have no
impact on the operations of the hotel and therefore, the Company believes the subtenant will continue to pay the rent and real estate taxes on the
subject leased property. The bankruptcy court has issued an order allowing the subtenant to pay operating expenses, including the rent and real
estate taxes on the subject leased property. Should the current subtenants of the leased properties fail to pay their rent and real estate taxes for the
subject leased property, the default could trigger liability for LabOne as well as other sublessors. The rent payments under the Hawaiian land
leases are subject to market value adjustments every ten years beginning in 2007. Given that the Hawaiian land leases are subject to market
value adjustments, the total contingent obligations under such leases cannot be precisely estimated, but are likely to total several hundred million
dollars. The contingent obligation of the Nevada lease is estimated to be approximately $6 million. The Company believes that the leasehold
improvements on the leased properties are significantly more valuable than the related lease obligations. Based on the circumstances above, no
liability has been recorded for any potential contingent obligations related to the land leases.

The Company has entered into several settlement agreements with various government and private payers during recent years relating to
industry-wide billing and marketing practices that had been substantially discontinued by the mid-1990s. Many aspects of our business are
subject to complex federal, state and local regulations, and federal or state governments may bring additional claims based on new theories as to
the Company s practices which management believes to be in compliance with law. In addition, certain federal and state statutes, including the
qui tam provisions of the federal False Claims Act, allow private individuals to bring lawsuits against healthcare companies on behalf of
government or private payers alleging inappropriate billing practices.
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The Company is aware of certain pending lawsuits related to billing practices filed under the qui tam provisions of the False Claims Act
and other federal and state statutes. These lawsuits include class action and individual claims by patients arising out of the Company s billing
practices. The Company also receives subpoenas and other inquiries from federal, state and local governments regarding the Company s billing
and other practices and operations. In addition, the Company is involved in various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business.
Some of the proceedings against the Company involve claims that are substantial in amount.

During the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company and NID each received a subpoena from the United States Attorney s Office for the
Eastern District of New York. The subpoenas request a wide range of business records, including documents regarding testing and test kits
related to parathyroid hormone ( PTH ) testing. The Company is cooperating with the United States Attorney s Office. The Company has
voluntarily provided information, witnesses and business records of NID and the Company, including documents related to testing and various
test kits other than PTH tests, which were not requested in the initial subpoenas. During the third quarter of 2006, the government issued two
additional subpoenas, one to NID and one to the Company. The subpoenas cover various records, including records related to test kits in
addition to PTH. The government may issue additional subpoenas in the course of its investigation. This investigation could lead to civil and
criminal damages, fines and penalties and additional liabilities from third party claims. In the second and third quarters of 2005, the U.S. Food
and Drug Administration ( FDA ) conducted an inspection of NID and issued a Form 483 listing the observations made by the FDA during the
course of the inspection. NID responded to the 483. Noncompliance with the FDA regulatory requirements or failure to take adequate and timely
corrective action could lead to regulatory or enforcement action against NID and/or the Company, including, but not limited to, a warning letter,
injunction, suspension of production and/or distribution, seizure or recall of products, fines or penalties, denial of pre-market clearance for new
or changed products, recommendation against award of government contracts and criminal prosecution. On April 19, 2006, the Company
decided to discontinue the operations of NID. See Note 9 for further details.

During the second quarter of 2005, the Company received a subpoena from the United States Attorney s Office for the District of New
Jersey. The subpoena seeks the production of business and financial records regarding capitation and risk sharing arrangements with government
and private payers for the years 1993 through 1999. Also, during the third quarter of 2005, the Company received a subpoena from the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Inspector General. The subpoena seeks the production of various business records
including records regarding its relationship with health maintenance organizations, independent physician associations, group purchasing
organizations, and preferred provider organizations from 1995 to the present. The Company is cooperating with the United States Attorney s
Office and the Office of the Inspector General.

During the second quarter of 2006, the Company received a subpoena from the California Attorney General s Office. The subpoena seeks
various documents including documents relating to billings to MediCal, the California Medicaid program. The subpoena seeks documents from
various time frames ranging from three to ten years. The Company is cooperating with the California Attorney General s Office.

Several of the proceedings discussed above are in their early stages of development and involve responding to and cooperating with
various government investigations and related subpoenas. While the Company believes that at least a reasonable possibility exists that losses
may have been incurred, based on the nature and status of the investigations, the losses are either currently not probable or cannot be reasonably
estimated.

Management has established reserves in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for the matters discussed above, where
appropriate. Such reserves total less than $1 million as of September 30, 2006. Although management cannot predict the outcome of such
matters, management does not anticipate that the ultimate outcome of such matters will have a material adverse effect on the Company s financial
condition but may be material to the Company s results of operations or cash flows in the period in which the impact of such matters is
determined or paid. However, the Company understands that there may be pending qui tam claims brought by former employees or other whistle
blowers , or other pending claims as to which the Company has not been provided with a copy of the complaint and accordingly cannot
determine the extent of any potential liability.

As a general matter, providers of clinical laboratory testing services may be subject to lawsuits alleging negligence or other similar legal
claims. These suits could involve claims for substantial damages. Any professional liability litigation could also have an adverse impact on the
Company s client base and reputation. The Company maintains various liability insurance coverage for claims that could result from providing or
failing to provide clinical laboratory testing services,
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including inaccurate testing results and other exposures. The Company s insurance coverage limits its maximum exposure on individual claims;
however, the Company is essentially self-insured for a significant portion of these claims. The basis for claims reserves considers actuarially
determined losses based upon the Company s historical and projected loss experience. Management believes that present insurance coverage and
reserves are sufficient to cover currently estimated exposures. Although management cannot predict the outcome of any claims made against the
Company, management does not anticipate that the ultimate outcome of any such proceedings or claims will have a material adverse effect on

the Company s financial condition but may be material to the Company s results of operations or cash flows in the period in which the impact of
such claims is determined or paid.

7. STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Changes in stockholders equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 were as follows:

Accumulated
Other
Shares of Compre-
Common Additional hensive Treasury
Stock Common Paid-In Retained Unearned Income Stock, at  Compre-hensive
Outstanding  Stock Capital Earnings Compen-sation (Loss) Cost Income
Balance, December 31, 2005 198,455 $ 2,137 $2,175,533 $ 1,292,510 $ (3,321) $ (6,205) $ (697,670)
Net income 437,135 $ 437,135
Other comprehensive income 8,623 8,623
Comprehensive
income $ 445,758
Dividends declared (59,281)
Reclassification upon adoption
of SFAS123R (3,321) 3,321
Issuance of common stock under
benefit plans 482 (3,324) 20,561
Stock-based compensation expense 52,956
Exercise of stock options 3,410 (66,689) 158,368
Shares to cover employee
payroll tax withholdings on
stock issued under benefit
plans (10) (547)
Tax benefits
associated with
stock-based
compensation plans 33,691
Purchases of treasury stock (4,969) (275,926)
Balance, September 30, 2006 197,368 $ 2,137 $2,188,299 $ 1,670,364 $ $ 2,418 $ (794,667)

For the three months ended September 30, 2006, total comprehensive income was $164 million.

For the three months ended September 30, 2006, the Company repurchased 0.4 million shares of its common stock at an average price of
$60.59 per share for $22 million. For the nine months ended September 30, 2006, the Company repurchased 5.0 million shares of its common
stock at an average price of $55.53 per share for $276 million. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006, the Company reissued
0.7 million and 3.8 million shares, respectively, for employee benefit plans. Since the inception of the share repurchase program in May 2003
through September 30, 2006, the Company has repurchased 37.4 million shares of its common stock at an average price of $44.32 for
approximately $1.7 billion. At September 30, 2006, $446 million of the share repurchase authorizations remained available.
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During each of the quarters of 2006 and 2005, the Company s Board of Directors has declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.10 and $0.09
per common share, respectively.
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Changes in stockholders equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 were as follows:

Accumulated
Shares of Other
Common Additional Comprehensive Treasury
Stock Common Paid-In Retained Unearned Income Stock,at  Compre-hensive
Outstanding  Stock Capital Earnings Compensation (Loss) Cost Income
Balance, December 31, 2004 196,220 $ 1,068 $2,195346 $ 818,734 $ an s 3,866 $ (730,352)
Net income 415,948 $ 415948
Other comprehensive loss (8,107) (8,107)
Comprehensive income $ 407,841
Adjustment for 2-for-1 stock
split 1,068 (1,068)
Dividends declared (54,635)
Issuance of common stock under
benefit plans 374 3,386 (3,934) 12,612
Exercise of stock options 3,345 (58,507) 143,352
Shares to cover employee
payroll tax withholdings on
stock issued under benefit plans @)
Conversion of contingent
convertible debentures 5,632 12,510 237,136
Tax benefits associated with
stock-based compensation
plans 28,396
Amortization of unearned
compensation 1,407
Purchases of treasury stock (3,770) (190,467)
Balance, September 30, 2005 201,801 $ 2,136 $2,180,056 $1,180,047 $ (2,538) $ (4,241) $ (527,719)

For the three months ended September 30, 2005, total comprehensive income was $130 million.

For the three months ended September 30, 2005, the Company repurchased 2.0 million shares of its common stock at an average price of
$50.41 per share for $98 million. For the nine months ended September 30, 2005, the Company repurchased 3.8 million shares of its common
stock at an average price of $50.52 per share for $190 million. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005, the Company reissued
0.9 million and 3.7 million shares, respectively, for employee benefit plans. For the nine months ended September 30, 2005, the Company
reissued 5.6 million shares in connection with the conversion of its Debentures.

8. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW & OTHER DATA

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Depreciation expense $ 46,153 $ 41,339 $ 138,658 $ 122,524
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Interest expense
Interest income

Interest expense, net

Interest paid
Income taxes paid

Non-cash financing activities:

Conversion of Debentures

(24,094) (13,231) (72,849) (39,607)
1,293 1,420 3,922 2,431

(22,801) (11,811) (68,927) (37,176)
24,847 22,914 72,384 47,889
92,510 82,969 275,383 231,946
$ 244,338
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For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006, other income (expense), net included $4.0 million and $16.3 million,
respectively, of charges associated with the write-down of investments. Other income (expense), net for the nine months ended September 30,
2006 also included a $16 million gain on the sale of an investment in the first quarter of 2006. For the three and nine months ended September
30, 2005, other income (expense), net includes a $7.1 million charge associated with the write-down of an investment.

9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the fourth quarter of 2005, NID instituted its second voluntary product hold within a six-month period, due to quality issues, which
adversely impacted the operating performance of NID. As a result, the Company evaluated a number of strategic options for NID. On April 19,
2006, the Company decided to discontinue NID s operations. During the third quarter of 2006, the Company completed its wind down of NID
and classified the operations of NID as discontinued operations. The accompanying consolidated statements of operations and related disclosures
have been restated to report the results of NID as discontinued operations for all periods presented. In connection with the Company s wind-down
of NID s operations, the Company recorded pre-tax charges of $3 million during the quarter ended September 30, 2006, primarily related to
charges for facility closure and employee severance costs. For the nine months ended September 30, 2006, the Company recorded pretax charges
of $31 million comprised of: $7 million related to the write-off of inventories; asset impairment charges of $5 million; employee severance costs
of $6 million; estimated contract termination costs of $6 million; $2 million related to facility closure charges; and $5 million of costs to support
activities to wind-down the business, principally comprised of employee costs and professional fees. The accrued costs are expected to be paid
principally in 2006 and 2007.

The ongoing government investigation and regulatory review of NID continue (see Note 6). While management does not believe that these
matters will have a material adverse impact on the Company s overall financial condition, their final resolution could be material to the
Company s results of operations or cash flows in the period in which the impact of such matters is determined or paid.

Summarized financial information for the discontinued operations of NID is set forth below (amounts in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Net revenues $ 55 $ 10,704 $ 3,610 $ 39,406
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes (5,802) (7,189) (54,740) (12,913)
Income tax benefit 2,471) (2,603) (17,458) 4,779)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes $ (3,331) % (4,586) $ (37,282) % (8,134)

Balance sheet information related to NID was not material at September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005.
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10. BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

Clinical laboratory testing is an essential element in the delivery of healthcare services. Physicians use laboratory tests to assist in the
detection, diagnosis, evaluation, monitoring and treatment of diseases and other medical conditions. Clinical laboratory testing is generally
categorized as clinical testing and anatomic pathology testing. Clinical testing is performed on body fluids, such as blood and urine. Anatomic
pathology testing is performed on tissues, including biopsies, and other samples, such as human cells. Customers of the clinical laboratory
testing business include patients, physicians, hospitals, employers, governmental institutions and other commercial clinical laboratories.

All other operating segments include the Company s non-clinical laboratory testing businesses and consist of its risk assessment services
business, its clinical trials testing business, its healthcare information technology business, MedPlus and its diagnostics products businesses. The
Company s risk assessment business, acquired as part of the LabOne acquisition in 2005 (see Note 3), provides underwriting support services to
the life insurance industry including teleunderwriting, specimen collection and paramedical examinations, laboratory testing, medical record
retrieval, motor vehicle reports, telephone inspections and credit checks. The Company s clinical trials testing business provides clinical
laboratory testing performed in connection with clinical research trials on new drugs. MedPlus is a developer and integrator of clinical
connectivity and data management solutions for healthcare organizations, physicians and clinicians. The Company s diagnostics products
business manufactures and markets diagnostic test kits and systems. On April 19, 2006, the Company decided to discontinue NID s operations
(see Note 9 for further details). During the third quarter of 2006, the Company acquired Focus and a privately held test kit manufacturer, both of
which develop and market diagnostic products.

Substantially all of the Company s services are provided within the United States, and substantially all of the Company s assets are located
within the United States.

The following table is a summary of segment information for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005. Segment
asset information is not presented since it is not reported to or used by the chief operating decision maker at the operating segment level.
Operating earnings (loss) of each segment represents net revenues less directly identifiable expenses to arrive at operating income for the
segment. General management and administrative corporate expenses, including amortization of intangible assets, are included in general
corporate expenses below. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those of the Company as set forth in Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statement contained in the Company s 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K and Note 1 to the interim consolidated
financial statements.
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Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2006 2005 2006 2005
Net revenues:
Clinical laboratory testing business $ 1,463,121 $ 1,324,635 $ 4,361,590 $ 3,916,466
All other operating segments 120,081 36,481 357,799 112,963
Total net revenues $ 1,583,202 $ 1,361,116 $4,719,389 $ 4,029,429
Operating earnings (loss):
Clinical laboratory testing business $ 322,486 (a) $ 273,706 (¢) $ 930,295 (a) (b) $ 807,459 (e)
All other operating segments 922 (c) (2,151) 10,742 (c) 1,150
General corporate expenses (30,547) (d) (21,200) (92,132) (d) (61,522)
Total operating income 292,861 250,355 848,905 747,087
Non-operating expenses, net (25,595) (17,128) (63,581) (38,713)
Income from continuing operations before income
taxes 267,266 233,227 785,324 708,374
Income tax expense 103,413 93,393 310,907 284,292
Income from continuing operations 163,853 139,834 474,417 424,082
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes (3,331) (4,586) (37,282) (8,134)
Net income $ 160,522 $ 135,248 $ 437,135 $ 415,948

(a) During 2006, $8.8 million and $32.6 million of stock-based compensation expense was recorded which reduced operating income for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2006, respectively.

(b) During the nine months ended September 30, 2006, operating income included $27 million of special charges, primarily associated with
integration activities (See Note 4).

(¢) During 2006, $1.3 million and $3.2 million of stock-based compensation expense was recorded which reduced operating income for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2006, respectively.

(d) During 2006, $3.4 million and $17.0 million of stock-based compensation expense was recorded which reduced operating income for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2006, respectively.

(e) During 2005, the Company recorded a $6.2 million charge primarily related to forgiving amounts owed by patients and physicians, and
related property damage as a result of the hurricanes in the Gulf Coast.

11.  SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Company s 5.125% senior notes due 2010, 5.45% senior notes due 2015, 7%2% senior notes due 2011 and the Debentures are fully and
unconditionally guaranteed by the Company s wholly owned subsidiaries that have operations in the United States (the Subsidiary Guarantors ).
With the exception of Quest Diagnostics Receivables Incorporated (see paragraph below), the non-guarantor subsidiaries are primarily foreign
subsidiaries and less than wholly owned subsidiaries. In January 2005, the Company completed its redemption of all of its outstanding
Debentures (see Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Company s 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K for further
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details). In July 2006, the Company repaid at maturity the $275 million outstanding under its 6%% senior notes due 2006.

In conjunction with the Company s secured receivables credit facility, the Company maintains a wholly owned non-guarantor subsidiary,
Quest Diagnostics Receivables Incorporated ( QDRI ). The Company and certain of its Subsidiary Guarantors transfer all private domestic
receivables to QDRI. QDRI utilizes the transferred receivables to collateralize borrowings under the Company s secured receivables credit
facility. The Company and the Subsidiary Guarantors provide collection services to QDRI. QDRI uses cash collections principally to purchase
new receivables from the Company and the Subsidiary Guarantors.

20
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QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
(in thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

(unaudited)

The following condensed consolidating financial data illustrates the composition of the combined guarantors. Investments in subsidiaries
are accounted for by the parent using the equity method for purposes of the supplemental consolidating presentation. Earnings (losses) of
subsidiaries are therefore reflected in the parent s investment accounts and earnings. The principal elimination entries relate to investments in
subsidiaries and intercompany balances and transactions. LabOne and Focus have been included in the accompanying condensed consolidating
financial data, subsequent to the closing of the acquisitions, as Subsidiary Guarantors.

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

Three Months Ended September 30, 2006

Net revenues

Operating costs and expenses:

Cost of services

Selling, general and administrative
Amortization of intangible assets
Royalty (income) expense

Other operating expense (income), net

Total operating costs and expenses

Operating income
Non-operating expenses, net

Income from continuing operations
before taxes
Income tax expense

Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net
of taxes

Equity earnings from subsidiaries

Net income

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

Three Months Ended September 30, 2005

Net revenues

Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of services

Selling, general and administrative
Amortization of intangible assets
Royalty (income) expense

Subsidiary Non-Guarantor
Parent Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
$ 232,329 $ 1,266,382 $ 180,495 $ (96,004) 1,583,202
128,993 743,919 60,823 933,735
38,048 255,989 66,078 (5,484) 354,631
361 2,570 114 3,045
(101,239) 101,239
(1,448) (68) 446 (1,070)
64,715 1,103,649 127,461 (5,484) 1,290,341
167,614 162,733 53,034 (90,520) 292,861
(44,839) (71,123) (153) 90,520 (25,595)
122,775 91,610 52,881 267,266
43,989 37,932 21,492 103,413
78,786 53,678 31,389 163,853
(2,560) (771) (3,331)
81,736 (81,736)
$ 160,522 $ 51,118 $ 30,618 $ (81,736) 160,522
Subsidiary Non-Guarantor
Parent Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
$ 225,287 $ 1,074,488 $ 137,596 $ (76,255) 1,361,116
121,551 632,283 45,240 799,074
27,679 214,984 66,167 (5,259) 303,571
421 467 888
(89,462) 89,462
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Other operating expense (income), net 7,200 28 7,228
Total operating costs and expenses 67,389 937,196 111,435 (5,259) 1,110,761
Operating income 157,898 137,292 26,161 (70,996) 250,355
Non-operating expenses, net (22,451) (64,775) (898) 70,996 (17,128)

Income from continuing operations

before taxes 135,447 72,517 25,263 233,227

Income tax expense 52,543 28,976 11,874 93,393

Income from continuing operations 82,904 43,541 13,389 139,834

Loss from discontinued operations, net

of taxes (3,947) (639) (4,586)

Equity earnings from subsidiaries 52,344 (52,344)

Net income $ 135248  § 39,594  $ 12,750  $ (52,344) 3 135,248
21
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QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
(in thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

(unaudited)
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2006
Subsidiary Non-Guarantor
Parent Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Net revenues $ 706,145 $ 3,763,442 $ 526,236  $ 276,434) $ 4,719,389
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of services 383,497 2,213,840 179,255 2,776,592
Selling, general and administrative 112,211 766,867 198,398 (16,469) 1,061,007
Amortization of intangible assets 1,152 6,374 114 7,640
Royalty (income) expense (294,340) 294,340
Other operating expense (income), net (858) 24,690 1,413 25,245
Total operating costs and expenses 201,662 3,306,111 379,180 (16,469) 3,870,484
Operating income 504,483 457,331 147,056 (259,965) 848,905
Non-operating expenses, net (110,087) (213,878) 419 259,965 (63,581)
Income from continuing operations
before taxes 394,396 243,453 147,475 785,324
Income tax expense 152,537 98,517 59,853 310,907
Income from continuing operations 241,859 144,936 87,622 474,417
Loss from discontinued operations, net
of taxes (25,426) (11,856) (37,282)
Equity earnings from subsidiaries 195,276 (195,276)
Net income $ 437,135 $ 119,510 $ 75,766  $ (195,276)  $ 437,135
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2005
Subsidiary Non-Guarantor
Parent Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Net revenues $ 656,933 $ 3,183970 $ 393236 $ (204,710)  $ 4,029,429
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of services 363,176 1,865,006 135,945 2,364,127
Selling, general and administrative 73,976 650,489 198,299 (15,536) 907,228
Amortization of intangible assets 1,331 1,357 18 2,706
Royalty (income) expense (264,693) 264,693
Other operating expense (income), net 8,288 (@) 8,281
Total operating costs and expenses 182,078 2,781,545 334,255 (15,536) 3,282,342
Operating income 474,855 402,425 58,981 (189,174) 747,087
Non-operating expenses, net (51,514) (175,436) (937) 189,174 (38,713)
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Income from continuing operations
before taxes
Income tax expense

Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net
of taxes

Equity earnings from subsidiaries

Net income

423,341 226,989 58,044 708,374
168,017 91,012 25,263 284,292
255,324 135,977 32,781 424,082
(6,936) (1,198) (8,134)
160,624 (160,624)
415,948 129,041 31,583  $ (160,624) $ 415,948
22
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QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
(in thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

(unaudited)
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
September 30, 2006
Subsidiary Non-Guarantor

Parent Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 85309 3 9458  $ 10,348  § $ 105,115
Accounts receivable, net 13,602 207,006 636,422 857,030
Other current assets 66,928 126,227 86,647 279,802
Total current assets 165,839 342,691 733,417 1,241,947
Property, plant and equipment, net 200,121 525,448 16,108 741,677
Goodwill and intangible assets, net 153,214 3,368,274 62,850 3,584,338
Intercompany receivable (payable) 276,131 (130,500) (145,631)
Investment in subsidiaries 3,629,553 (3,629,553)
Other assets 123,673 6,740 40,604 (34,169) 136,848
Total assets $4,548,531 $ 4,112,653 $ 707,348 $ (3,663,722) $ 5,704,810
Liabilities and Stockholders Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 487,531 $ 341,403 $ 3,772 $ $ 860,706
Short-term borrowings and current portion of
long-term debt 16,913 300,000 316,913
Total current liabilities 487,531 358,316 331,772 1,177,619
Long-term debt 933,192 304,831 979 1,239,002
Other liabilities 59,257 164,445 30,105 (34,169) 219,638
Stockholders equity 3,068,551 3,285,061 344,492 (3,629,553) 3,068,551
Total liabilities and stockholders equity $ 4,548,531 $ 4,112,653 $ 707,348 $ (3,663,722) $ 5,704,810
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
December 31, 2005

Subsidiary Non-Guarantor

Parent Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 76,941 $ 4,759 $ 10,430 $ $ 92,130
Accounts receivable, net 31,611 152,314 548,982 732,907
Other current assets 43,932 116,099 84,429 244,460
Total current assets 152,484 273,172 643,841 1,069,497
Property, plant and equipment, net 200,438 523,907 29,318 753,663
Goodwill and intangible assets, net 156,314 3,142,702 45,594 3,344,610

Intercompany receivable (payable) 418,892 (14,091) (404,801)
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Investment in subsidiaries
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Short-term borrowings and current portion of
long-term debt

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt

Other liabilities
Stockholders equity

Total liabilities and stockholders equity

3,199,319 (3,199,319)

94,050 7,754 37,784 (1,243) 138,345
$4,221,497 $ 3933444 § 351,736 $ (3,200,562) $ 5,306,115
$ 433310 $ 293,705 $ 37438  § $ 764453

35,306 240,553 60,980 336,839

468,616 534,258 98,418 1,101,292
932,950 321,458 978 1,255,386
56,947 107,121 23,628 (1,243) 186,453
2,762,984 2,970,607 228,712 (3,199,319) 2,762,984
$4,221,497 $ 3933444 § 351,736 $ (3,200,562) $ 5,306,115

23

36



Edgar Filing: QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INC - Form 10-Q

QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
(in thousands, unless otherwise indicated)

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2006

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Provision for doubtful accounts

Provision for restructuring and other special charges
Other, net

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2005

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Provision for doubtful accounts

Other, net

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

(unaudited)
Subsidiary Non-Guarantor

Parent Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations  Consolidated

$ 437,135 $ 119,510 $ 75,766 $ (195,276) $ 437,135

35,216 104,259 8,533 148,008

4,354 41,391 138,882 184,627

47,868 7,920 55,788

(246,708) 38,865 16,726 195,276 4,159
41,389 (35,940) (189,360) (183,911)

271,386 315,953 58,467 645,806
(2,455) (84,048) (7,617) (257,141) (351,261)
(260,563) (227,206) (50,932) 257,141 (281,560)

8,368 4,699 (82) 12,985

76,941 4,759 10,430 92,130

$ 85309 $ 9,458 $ 10,348  $ $ 105,115

Subsidiary ~ Non-Guarantor

Parent Guarantors Subsidiaries Eliminations  Consolidated

$ 415948 $ 129,041 $ 31,583 $ (160,624) $ 415,948

39,230 81,802 7,954 128,986

4,180 29,897 143,877 177,954

(124,588) (3,767) 9,994 160,624 42,263
34,719 (105,626) (146,070) (216,977)

369,489 131,347 47,338 548,174
28,940 (142,788) (13,086) (112,049) (238,983)
(257,496) 7,812 (34,769) 112,049 (172,404)

140,933 (3,629) 517) 136,787

56,424 6,058 10,820 73,302

$ 197357 % 2,429 $ 10,303 $ $ 210,089
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Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires us to
make estimates and assumptions and select accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

While many operational aspects of our business are subject to complex federal, state and local regulations, the accounting for it is
generally straightforward with net revenues primarily recognized upon completion of the testing process. Our revenues are primarily comprised
of a high volume of relatively low dollar transactions, and about one-half of total operating costs and expenses consist of employee
compensation and benefits. Due to the nature of our business, several of our accounting policies involve significant estimates and judgments.
Our critical accounting policies are detailed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005. As of September 30,
2006, our critical accounting policies have not changed from December 31, 2005, except for the Company s accounting for stock-based
compensation in connection with the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ( SFAS ) No. 123, revised 2004, Share-Based
Payment ( SFAS 123R ).

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS 123R using the modified prospective approach and therefore have not restated results for
prior periods. Under this approach, awards that are granted, modified or settled after January 1, 2006 will be measured and accounted for in
accordance with SFAS 123R. Unvested awards that were granted prior to January 1, 2006 will continue to be accounted for in accordance with
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation ( SFAS 123 ), as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation - Transition and Disclosure - an amendment of FASB Statement No. 123 ( SFAS 148 ), except that compensation cost will be
recognized in our results of operations. Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS 123R, we record stock-based compensation as a charge to earnings
net of the estimated impact of forfeited awards. As such, we recognize stock-based compensation cost only for those stock-based awards that are
estimated to ultimately vest over their requisite service period, based on the vesting provisions of the individual grants.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company accounted for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed in
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees ( APB 25 ), and related interpretations and chose to
adopt the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS 123, as amended by SFAS 148. Under this approach, the cost of restricted stock awards was
expensed over their vesting period, while the imputed cost of stock option grants and discounts offered under the Company s Employee Stock
Purchase Plan was disclosed, based on the vesting provisions of the individual grants, but not charged to expense.

The process of estimating the fair value of stock-based compensation awards and recognizing stock-based compensation cost over their
requisite service period involves significant assumptions and judgments. We estimate the fair value of stock option awards on the date of grant
using a lattice-based option-valuation model which requires management to make certain assumptions regarding: (i) the expected volatility in the
market price of the Company s common stock; (ii) dividend yield; (iii) risk-free interest rates; and (iv) the period of time employees are expected
to hold the award prior to exercise (referred to as the expected holding period). The expected volatility under the lattice-based option-valuation
model is based on the current and historical implied volatilities from traded options of our common stock. The dividend yield is based on the
approved annual dividend rate in effect and current market price of the underlying common stock at the time of grant. The risk-free interest rate
is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant for bonds with maturities ranging from one month to seven years. The
expected life of the awards granted is estimated using the historical exercise behavior of employees. In addition, SFAS 123R requires us to
estimate the expected impact of forfeited awards and recognize stock-based compensation cost only for those awards expected to vest. If actual
forfeiture rates are materially different from our estimates, stock-based compensation expense could be significantly different from what we
have recorded in the current period. We periodically review actual forfeiture experience and revise our estimates, as considered necessary. The
cumulative effect on current and prior periods of a change in the estimated forfeiture rate is recognized as compensation cost in earnings in the
period of the revision. Finally, the terms of our performance share unit grants allow the recipients of such awards to earn a variable number of
shares based on the achievement of the performance goals specified in the awards. The actual amount of any stock award is based on the
Company s earnings per share growth for the performance period compared to that of a peer group of companies. Stock-based compensation
expense associated with performance share units is recognized based on management s best estimates of the achievement of the performance
goals specified in such awards and the resulting number of shares that will be earned. If the actual number of performance share units earned is
different from our estimates, stock-based
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compensation could be significantly different from what we have recorded in the current period. We periodically obtain and review publicly
available financial information for the members of the peer group and the Company, including forecasted earnings estimates. This information is
used to evaluate our progress towards achieving the performance criteria and our estimate of the number of performance share units expected to
be earned at the end of the performance period. The cumulative effect on current and prior periods of a change in the estimated number of
performance share units expected to be earned is recognized as compensation cost in earnings in the period of the revision. While the
assumptions used to calculate and account for stock-based compensation awards represent management s best estimates, these estimates involve
inherent uncertainties and the application of management s judgment. As a result, if revisions are made to our assumptions and estimates, our
stock-based compensation expense could be materially different in the future. See Notes 1 and 2 to the interim consolidated financial statements
for a further discussion of stock-based compensation.

Contract with United Healthcare

In October 2006, we announced that the Company would not be a national contracted provider of laboratory services to UnitedHealthcare
Group Inc., or UNH, beginning January 1, 2007. UNH accounts for approximately 7% of our consolidated net revenues.

We expect to continue to service UNH s members in certain markets as a contracted provider and in other markets as a non-contracted, or
out-of-network provider. We are in the process of developing plans to retain as much of the UNH business as possible as an out-of-network
provider. We are also developing plans to reduce costs to the extent that we do not retain UNH business. As part of our plans we are evaluating
our rights as an out-of-network provider and preparing to defend those rights. In addition, we are educating patients, their physicians and
employers that there are important differences between laboratory testing providers, and that they do have choice in selecting their testing
provider. We cannot estimate at this time the financial impact of being an out-of-network provider on a national basis, and plan to provide
additional information on our change in status with UNH in January 2007.

Acquisition and Integration of LabOne, Inc.

On November 1, 2005, we completed the acquisition of LabOne, Inc., or LabOne, in an all-cash transaction with a combined value of
approximately $947 million, including approximately $138 million of assumed debt. See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
contained in our 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K and Note 3 to the interim consolidated financial statements for a discussion of the LabOne
acquisition.

Through the acquisition, Quest Diagnostics acquired all of LabOne s operations, including its health screening and risk assessment services
to life insurance companies, as well as its clinical diagnostic testing services to healthcare providers and drugs-of-abuse testing to employers.
LabOne had 3,100 employees and principal laboratories in Lenexa, Kansas, as well as in Cincinnati, Ohio. We financed the acquisition and
related transaction costs and the repayment of substantially all of LabOne s outstanding debt with proceeds from a $900 million private
placement of senior notes, as described in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements contained in our 2005 Annual Report on Form
10-K, and from cash on hand.

During the first quarter of 2006, we finalized our plan related to the integration of LabOne and recorded $23 million of costs, primarily
comprised of employee severance benefits. Employee groups affected as a result of this plan include those involved in the testing of specimens,
as well as administrative and other support functions. Of the total costs indicated above, $21 million related to actions that impact Quest
Diagnostics employees and its operations and are comprised principally of employee severance benefits for approximately 600 employees.
These costs were accounted for as a charge to earnings and included in other operating (income) expense, net within the consolidated statements
of operations.

In addition, $2.6 million of integration costs, related to actions that impact the employees and operations of LabOne, were accounted for
as a cost of the LabOne acquisition and included in goodwill. Of the $2.6 million, $1.2 million related to asset write-offs with the remainder
primarily associated with employee severance benefits for approximately 95 employees.

As of September 30, 2006, accruals related to the LabOne integration plan totaled $22 million. While the majority of the accrued
integration costs are expected to be paid in 2006 and 2007, there are certain severance costs that have payment terms extending into 2008. Upon
completion of the LabOne integration, we expect to realize approximately $40 million of annual synergies and we expect to achieve this annual
rate of synergies by the end of 2007.
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Acquisition of Focus Diagnostics, Inc.

On July 3, 2006, we completed our previously announced acquisition of Focus Diagnostics, Inc., or Focus, in an all-cash transaction
valued at $208 million, including approximately $3 million of assumed debt. See Note 3 to the interim consolidated financial statements for a
full discussion of the Focus acquisition.

Focus is a leading provider of infectious and immunologic diseases testing and develops and markets diagnostic products. Focus offers its
reference testing services to large academic medical centers, hospitals and commercial laboratories. We financed the acquisition and related
transaction costs and the repayment of substantially all of Focus s outstanding debt with $135 million of borrowings under our secured
receivables credit facility and with cash on hand.

Results of Operations

Our clinical testing business currently represents our one reportable business segment. The clinical testing business accounts for
approximately 92% and 97% of revenues from continuing operations in 2006 and 2005, respectively. Our other operating segments consist of
our risk assessment services business, our clinical trials testing business, our diagnostic products business, and our healthcare information
technology business, MedPlus. On April 19, 2006, we decided to discontinue the operations of a test kit manufacturing subsidiary, NID. During
the third quarter of 2006, we completed our wind down of NID and classified the operations of NID as discontinued operations. The results of
NID are reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented. Our business segment information is disclosed in Note 10 to the interim
consolidated financial statements.

Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2006 Compared with Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2005
Continuing Operations

Income from continuing operations for the three months ended September 30, 2006 increased to $164 million, or $0.82 per diluted share,
compared to $140 million, or $0.68 per diluted share in 2005. For the nine months ended September 30, 2006, income from continuing
operations increased to $474 million, or $2.37 per diluted share compared to $424 million or $2.06 per diluted share in 2005.

The increases in income from continuing operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006 were principally associated
with improved performance in our clinical testing business, driven by organic revenue growth and increases in operating efficiencies resulting
from our Six Sigma, standardization and consolidation efforts. Results for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 include pre-tax charges of
$27 million, or $0.08 per diluted share, associated with integration activities related to LabOne and our operations in California, and $16 million
pre-tax, or $0.05 per diluted share, related to investment write-downs, which were offset by a pre-tax gain of $16 million, or $0.05 per diluted
share, related to the sale of an investment in the first quarter of 2006. Also, results for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006,
included pre-tax expenses of $13 million, or $0.04 per share, and $53 million, or $0.16 per share, respectively, associated with stock-based
compensation recorded in accordance with SFAS 123R.

Our results from continuing operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005 were unfavorably impacted by hurricanes
in the Gulf Cost. The effect of the hurricanes reduced revenues by approximately half a percent for the quarter and operating income by $11
million ($0.03 per share) for both periods. This includes a pre-tax charge of $6.2 million ($0.02 per share) included in other operating (income)
expense, net, primarily related to forgiveness of amounts owed by patients and physicians in the areas affected by the hurricanes and related
property damage. The results for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005 also include a third quarter pre-tax charge of $7.1 million
($0.02 per share) to write down an investment.

Net Revenues

Net revenues for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006 grew by 16.3% and 17.1% over the prior year levels to $1.6 billion
and $4.7 billion, respectively. The acquisition of LabOne contributed between 9% and 10% to revenue growth for each period. Our recently
completed acquisition of Focus contributed about 1% to revenue growth for the three months ended September 30, 2006. Approximately 55% of
LabOne s net revenues are generated from risk assessment services provided to life insurance companies, with the remainder classified as clinical
laboratory testing.
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Our clinical testing business net revenues grew 10.5% and 11.4%, respectively, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006,
with the acquisition of LabOne contributing almost 5% for both periods, principally reflected in volume. For the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2006, clinical testing volume increased 4.9% and 6.4%, respectively, compared to the prior year periods. For the three months
ended September 30, 2006, clinical testing revenues and volume comparisons were reduced by about 1% due to the number of business days in
the quarter and were increased by approximately half a percent due to hurricanes in the prior year s quarter. Average revenue per requisition
increased 5.4% and 4.7% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006, respectively. The increase in revenue per requisition was
principally driven by a shift to a more esoteric test mix and an increase in the number of tests ordered per requisition.

Our businesses other than clinical laboratory testing accounted for approximately 8% of our net revenues for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2006. These businesses include our clinical trials testing business, our diagnostics products business, and our healthcare
information technology business (MedPlus), whose revenue growth rates did not significantly affect our overall growth rate. In addition, we
consider the risk assessment business, acquired as part of the LabOne acquisition, to be a non-clinical laboratory testing business. The risk
assessment business represents approximately 5% of our net revenues and is currently growing at between 1% and 2% per year. The growth in
risk assessment services has slowed, and is being adversely impacted by an overall decline in the life insurance market, resulting in a decline in
the number of life insurance applicants being tested, partially offset by growth in paramedical exams and various risk assessment activities
outsourced by life insurance companies.

Operating Costs and Expenses

Total operating costs and expenses for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006 increased $180 million and $588 million,
respectively, from the prior year periods primarily due to the LabOne acquisition and, to a lesser degree, organic growth in our clinical testing
business. The increased costs were primarily in the areas of employee compensation and benefits, which included $13 million and $53 million of
stock-based compensation recorded in accordance with SFAS 123R, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006, respectively, and
testing supplies. While our cost structure has been favorably impacted by efficiencies generated from our Six Sigma, standardization and
consolidation initiatives, we continue to make investments in sales, service, science and information technology to further differentiate our
company. During the first quarter of 2006, we recorded $27 million of pre-tax charges (included in other operating (income) expense, net )
primarily associated with integration activities related to LabOne and our operations in California.

Cost of services, which includes the costs of obtaining, transporting and testing specimens, was 59.0% of net revenues for the three
months ended September 30, 2006, increasing from 58.7% of net revenues in the prior year period. For the nine months ended September 30,
2006, cost of services, as a percentage of net revenues, was 58.8%, compared to 58.7% in the prior year period. The increases over the prior year
are primarily due to the addition of the LabOne business, which carries a higher cost of sales percentage than the Company average. Partially
offsetting these increases were improvements related to the increase in average revenue per requisition and efficiency gains resulting from our
Six Sigma, standardization and consolidation initiatives.

Selling, general and administrative expenses, which include the costs of the sales force, billing operations, bad debt expense, and general
management and administrative support, were 22.4% of net revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2006, compared to 22.3% in the
prior year period. For the nine months ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, selling, general and administrative expenses, as a percentage of net
revenues were 22.5%. Revenue growth which has allowed us to leverage our expense base, as well as continued benefits from our Six Sigma
standardization and consolidation efforts, have reduced these expenses as a percentage of net revenues. Also serving to reduce the percentage is
the addition of the LabOne business, which carries a lower selling, general and administrative expense percentage than the Company average.
For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006, bad debt expense was 3.8% and 3.9% of net revenues, respectively, compared to 4.3%
and 4.4% of net revenues for the comparable prior year s periods. The lower bad debt rate primarily relates to the improved collection of
diagnosis, patient and insurance information necessary to more effectively bill for services performed. We believe that our Six Sigma and
standardization initiatives and the increased use of electronic ordering by our customers is driving the improvement and will provide additional
opportunities to further improve our overall collection experience and cost structure. Offsetting the improvement was stock-based compensation
expense recorded in accordance with SFAS 123R, which increased selling, general and administrative expenses, as a percentage of net revenues
by approximately 1% for both the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006.

Other operating (income) expense, net represents miscellaneous income and expense items related to operating activities, including gains
and losses associated with the disposal of operating assets and provisions for restructurings and other special charges. For the nine months ended
September 30, 2006, other operating (income) expense, net included pre-tax charges of $27 million principally associated with integration
activities related to LabOne and our operations in California, which are more fully described in Note 4 to the interim consolidated financial
statements.
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For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005, other operating (income) expense, net includes a $6.2 million charge primarily
related to forgiving amounts owed by patients and physicians, and related property damage as a result of hurricanes in the Gulf Coast.

Operating Income

Operating income for the three months ended September 30, 2006 was $293 million, or 18.5% of net revenues, compared to $250 million,
or 18.4% of net revenues, in the prior year period. For the nine months ended September 30, 2006, operating income was $849 million, or 18.0%
of net revenues, compared to $747 million or 18.5% of net revenues, in the prior year period. Improvements in operating income over the prior
year were driven by the performance of our clinical testing business. Partially offsetting these improvements was $27 million of special charges
recorded in the first quarter of 2006, primarily related to integration activities. Additionally, operating income for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2006 included $13 million and $53 million, respectively, of stock-based compensation expense recorded pursuant to SFAS
123R.

Operating income as a percentage of net revenues for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006 compared to the prior year s
periods was reduced by approximately 1.0% due to stock-based compensation expense, and by 1.0% due to the results of the LabOne business,
which we expect will continue to carry lower margins than the rest of our operations until we have realized most of the expected $40 million in
synergies. Operating income as a percentage of net revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 was also reduced by approximately
0.6% due to special charges, primarily related to integration activities.

Other Income (Expense)

Interest expense, net for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006 increased $11 million and $32 million, respectively, over
the prior year periods. The increases in interest expense, net were primarily due to additional interest expense associated with our $900 million
senior notes offering in October 2005 used to fund the LabOne acquisition, as described more fully in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements contained in our 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Other income (expense), net represents miscellaneous income and expense items related to non-operating activities such as gains and
losses associated with investments and other non-operating assets. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006 other income
(expense), net includes a $4 million charge recorded in the third quarter associated with the write-down of an investment. In addition, for the
nine months ended September 30, 2006, other income (expense), net includes a $12 million charge recorded during the second quarter related to
a write-down of an investment and a first quarter gain of $16 million on the sale of an investment.

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2005, other income (expense), net includes a $7 million charge associated with the
write-down of an investment.

Income Taxes

The decrease in the effective tax rate for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006, compared to the prior year periods, was
primarily due to adjustments made in the third quarter of 2006 related to the resolution of certain income tax contingencies.

Discontinued Operations

During the fourth quarter of 2005, NID instituted its second voluntary product hold within a six-month period, due to quality issues, which
adversely impacted the operating performance of NID. As a result, we evaluated a number of strategic options for NID. On April 19, 2006, we
decided to discontinue NID s operations. During the third quarter of 2006, we completed the wind down of NID s operations. Results of NID are
reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, for the three months ended September 30, 2006 decreased to $3 million, or $0.02 per
diluted share, compared to $5 million, or $0.02 per diluted share in 2005. Results for the three months ended September 30, 2006 reflect pre-tax
charges of $2.7 million, primarily related to facility closure charges and employee severance costs. Results for the three months ended
September 30, 2005 also reflect losses from NID s operations, due to its voluntary product hold instituted late in the second quarter of 2005 in
connection with a quality review of all its products.
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Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax, for the nine months ended September 30, 2006, increased to $37 million, or $0.19 per
diluted share, compared to $8 million, or $0.04 per diluted share, in 2005. Results for the nine months ended September 30, 2006, reflect pre-tax
charges of $31 million, primarily related to the wind-down of NID s operations. These charges included: inventory write-offs of $7 million; asset
impairment charges of $5 million; employee severance costs of $6 million; estimated contract termination costs of $6 million; facility closure
costs of $2 million; and costs to support activities to wind down the business, comprised primarily of employee costs and professional fees, of $5
million. Results for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 also include losses from NID s operations due to its voluntary product hold.

The ongoing government investigation and regulatory review of NID continue. Any costs resulting from this review will be included in
discontinued operations. While we do not believe that these matters will have a material adverse impact on our overall financial condition, their
final resolution could be material to our results of operations or cash flows in the period in which the impact of such matters is determined or
paid. See Note 6 to the interim consolidated financial statements for a further description of these matters.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We address our exposure to market risks, principally the market risk of changes in interest rates, through a controlled program of risk
management that may include the use of derivative financial instruments. We do not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes. We do not believe that our foreign exchange exposure is material to our financial condition or results of operations. See Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in our 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional discussion of our financial instruments and hedging
activities.

At September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the fair value of our debt was estimated at approximately $1.6 billion using quoted
market prices and yields for the same or similar types of borrowings, taking into account the underlying terms of the debt instruments. At
September 30, 2006, the estimated fair value exceeded the carrying value of the debt by approximately $12 million. At December 31, 2005, the
estimated fair value exceeded the carrying value of the debt by approximately $39 million. A hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates
(representing approximately 45 and 59 basis points at September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively) would potentially reduce the
estimated fair value of our debt by approximately $34 million and $36 million at September 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively.

Borrowings under our senior unsecured revolving credit facility, our secured receivables credit facility and our term loan due December
2008, are subject to variable interest rates. Interest on our secured receivables credit facility is based on rates that are intended to approximate
commercial paper rates for highly- rated issuers. Interest rates on our senior unsecured revolving credit facility and term loan due December
2008 are subject to a pricing schedule that can fluctuate based on changes in our credit ratings. As such, our borrowing cost under these credit
arrangements will be subject to both fluctuations in interest rates and changes in our credit ratings. As of September 30, 2006, the borrowing rate
for our revolving credit facility was LIBOR plus 0.375% and for our term loan the borrowing rate was LIBOR plus 0.50%. At September 30,
2006, the LIBOR rate was 5.33%. At September 30, 2006, there was $75 million outstanding under our term loan due December 2008, $300
million outstanding under our secured receivables credit facility and no borrowings outstanding under our $500 million senior unsecured
revolving credit facility. Based on our net exposure to interest rate changes, a hypothetical 10% change in interest rates on our variable rate
indebtedness (representing approximately 54 basis points) would impact annual net interest expense by approximately $2 million, assuming no
changes to the debt outstanding at September 30, 2006. See Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in our 2005 Annual Report on
Form 10-K for details regarding our outstanding debt.

Risk Associated with Investment Portfolio

Our investment portfolio includes equity investments in publicly held companies that are classified as available-for-sale securities and
other strategic equity holdings in privately held companies. These securities are exposed to price fluctuations and are generally concentrated in
the life sciences industry. The carrying values of our available-for-sale equity securities and privately held securities were $38 million at
September 30, 2006.

We do not hedge our equity price risk. The impact of an adverse movement in equity prices on our holdings in privately held companies
cannot be easily quantified, as our ability to realize returns on investments depends on, among other things, the enterprises ability to raise
additional capital or derive cash inflows from continuing operations or through liquidity events such as initial public offerings, mergers or
private sales.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at September 30, 2006 totaled $105 million compared to $92 million at December 31, 2005. Cash flows from
operating activities in 2006 were $646 million, which were used to fund investing and financing activities of $351 million and $282 million,
respectively. Cash and cash equivalents at September 30, 2005 totaled $210 million, compared to $73 million at December 31, 2004. Cash flows
from operating activities in 2005 were $548 million, which were used to fund investing and financing activities of $239 million and $172
million, respectively.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 was $646 million compared to $548 million in
the prior year period. This increase was primarily due to improved operating performance of our clinical testing business. Days sales
outstanding, a measure of billing and collection efficiency, were 48 days at September 30, 2006 compared to 46 days at December 31, 2005.
During the three months ended September 30, 2006, a temporary stoppage in Medicare payments and the timing of quarter end cash receipts
each caused a one day increase in days sales outstanding. Subsequent to the end of the quarter, Medicare payments resumed and the impact of
quarter end timing of cash receipts reversed, eliminating the impact of such items on days sales outstanding.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 was $351 million, consisting primarily of $231 million
related to the acquisition of Focus and a privately held test kit manufacturer, and capital expenditures of $134 million. These amounts were
partially offset by $16 million of proceeds from the sale of an investment. The decrease in capital expenditures compared to the prior year is
principally due to the completion of a new facility in California, for which there were substantial expenditures in the prior year.

Net cash used in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 was $239 million, consisting primarily of capital
expenditures of $178 million, equity investments of $38 million in companies which develop diagnostic tests, and an acquisition of a small
regional laboratory for $19 million.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2006 was $282 million. During 2006, we repaid $275
million outstanding under our 6%% senior notes, $60 million of principal outstanding under our secured receivables credit facility and $75
million under our senior unsecured revolving credit facility. Debt repayments and acquisitions were funded with cash on hand and borrowings of
$75 million under our senior unsecured revolving credit facility and $300 million under our secured receivables credit facility. In addition, we
purchased $276 million of treasury stock, which represents 5 million shares of our common stock purchased at an average price of $55.53 per
share, partially offset by $122 million in proceeds from the exercise of stock options, including related tax benefits. We also paid dividends of
$57 million.

Net cash used in financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2005 was $172 million, consisting primarily of purchases of
treasury stock totaling $190 million and dividend payments totaling $51 million, partially offset by $85 million in proceeds from the exercise of
stock options. In addition, we repaid the remaining $100 million of principal outstanding under our senior unsecured revolving credit facility
with $100 million of borrowings under our secured receivables credit facility. The $190 million in treasury stock purchases represents 3.8
million shares of our common stock purchased at an average price of $50.52 per share.

Dividend Policy

During each of the quarters of 2006, our Board of Directors has declared a quarterly cash dividend per common share of $0.10. During
each of the quarters of 2005, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.09 per common share. We expect to fund future
dividend payments with cash flows from operations, and do not expect the dividend to have a material impact on our ability to finance future
growth.
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Share Repurchase Plan

For the three months ended September 30, 2006, we repurchased 362 thousand shares of our common stock at an average price of $60.59
per share for $22 million. For the nine months ended September 30, 2006, we repurchased 5 million shares of our common stock at an average
price of $55.53 for $276 million. Through September 30, 2006, we have repurchased approximately 37.4 million shares of our common stock at
an average price of $44.32 for $1.7 billion under our share repurchase program. At September 30, 2006, the total available for repurchases under
the remaining authorizations was $446 million.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

A full description of the terms of our indebtedness and related debt service requirements and our future payments under certain of our
contractual obligations is contained in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in our 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K. A full
discussion and analysis regarding our minimum rental commitments under noncancelable operating leases and noncancelable commitments to
purchase products or services at December 31, 2005 is contained in Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in our 2005 Annual Report
on Form 10-K. See Note 6 to the interim consolidated financial statements for information regarding the status of legal matters involving the
Company.

Our credit agreements relating to our senior unsecured revolving credit facility and our term loan due December 2008 contain various
covenants and conditions, including the maintenance of certain financial ratios, that could impact our ability to, among other things, incur
additional indebtedness. We do not expect these covenants to adversely impact our ability to execute our growth strategy or conduct normal
business operations.

Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

We have investments in unconsolidated joint ventures in Phoenix, Arizona; Indianapolis, Indiana; and Dayton, Ohio, which are accounted
for under the equity method of accounting. We believe that our transactions with our joint ventures are conducted at arm s length, reflecting
current market conditions and pricing. Total net revenues of our unconsolidated joint ventures equal less than 6% of our consolidated net
revenues. Total assets associated with our unconsolidated joint ventures are less than 2% of our consolidated total assets. We have no material
unconditional obligations or guarantees to, or in support of, our unconsolidated joint ventures and their operations.

Requirements and Capital Resources

We estimate that we will invest approximately $180 million to $200 million during 2006 for capital expenditures to support and expand
our existing operations, principally related to investments in information technology, equipment, and facility upgrades.

As of September 30, 2006, $500 million of borrowing capacity was available under our existing credit facilities.

We believe that cash from operations and our borrowing capacity under our credit facilities will provide sufficient financial flexibility to
meet seasonal working capital requirements and to fund capital expenditures, debt service requirements, cash dividends on common shares,
share repurchases and additional growth opportunities for the foreseeable future. Our investment grade credit ratings have had a favorable
impact on our cost of and access to capital, and we believe that our strong financial performance should provide us with access to additional
financing, if necessary, to fund growth opportunities that cannot be funded from existing sources.

Impact of New Accounting Standards

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS 123R using the modified prospective approach. See Notes 1 and 2 to the interim consolidated
financial statements for further details.

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB ) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes . In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 Fair Value Measurements and SFAS No. 158 Employers Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post-Retirement Plans .

In August 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission ( SEC ) issued new requirements for Executive Compensation and Related
Person Disclosure , and in September 2006 the SEC released Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements When Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements .
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The impact of these accounting standards is discussed in Note 1 to the interim consolidated financial statements.
Forward-Looking Statements

Some statements and disclosures in this document are forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements include all statements that
do not relate solely to historical or current facts and can be identified by the use of words such as may , believe , will , expect , project , estims
anticipate , plan or continue . These forward-looking statements are based on our current plans and expectations and are subject to a number of
risks and uncertainties that could significantly cause our plans and expectations, including actual results, to differ materially from the
forward-looking statements. The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, or the Litigation Reform Act, provides a safe harbor for
forward-looking statements to encourage companies to provide prospective information about their companies without fear of litigation.

We would like to take advantage of the safe harbor provisions of the Litigation Reform Act in connection with the forward-looking
statements included in this document. The risks and other factors that could cause our actual financial results to differ materially from those
projected, forecasted or estimated by us in forward-looking statements may include, but are not limited to, unanticipated expenditures, changing
relationships with customers, payers, suppliers and strategic partners, competitive environment, changes in government regulations, conditions
of the economy and other factors described in our 2005 Annual Report on Form 10-K and subsequent filings.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
See Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations .

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a) Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined under Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of the
end of the period covered by this report. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are adequate and effective.

(b)  During the third quarter of 2006, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings
See Note 6 to the interim consolidated financial statements for information regarding the status of legal proceedings involving the

Company.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

(c) Total Number of (d) Approximate Dollar
(a) Total (b) Average Shares Purchased as Value of Shares that May
Number of Price Paid Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased Under the
Shares per Announced Plans or Plans or Programs
Period Purchased Share Programs (in thousands)
July 1,2006 July 31, 2006 143,000 $ 59.84 143,000 $ 459,490
August 1,2006  August 31, 2006 219,300 $ 61.08 219,300 $ 446,095
September 1, 2006 - September 30, 2006 $ 446,095
Total 362,300 $ 60.59 362,300 $ 446,095

In 2003, our Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program, which permitted us to purchase up to $600 million of our common
stock. In July 2004, our Board of Directors authorized us to purchase up to an additional $300 million of our common stock. Under a separate
authorization from our Board of Directors, in December 2004 we repurchased 5.4 million shares of our common stock for approximately $254
million from GlaxoSmithKline plc. In January 2005, our Board of Directors expanded the share repurchase authorization by an additional $350
million. In January 2006, our Board of Directors expanded the share repurchase authorization by an additional $600 million.

Item 6. Exhibits
Exhibits:
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
34

48



Edgar Filing: QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INC - Form 10-Q

Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf

by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

October 27, 2006
Quest Diagnostics Incorporated

By /s/ Surya N. Mohapatra

Surya N. Mohapatra, Ph.D.
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

By /s/ Robert A. Hagemann

Robert A. Hagemann
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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